
From: L & P Enquiries
To: @protonmail.com
Subject: Query about registering a political party
Date: Tuesday, 11 July 2023 4:07:00 pm
Attachments: image001.png

Tēnā koe Michele
 
Thanks for your email.
 
We are unable to review the form as it requires making an account in order to access it. Please can you provide it in a
format that we can access.
 
The Party Registration Handbook on our website includes information on registering a party.
 
The membership form should include the following information completed by each member:

Name and residential street address
Confirmation by the member that they are a registered elector or are eligible to enrol as an elector (this should
be made clear and unambiguous)
The amount of fee that has been paid to the party
The member’s signature
Authorisation for the party to record them as a financial member of the party
Authorisation for the party to release their membership details to the Electoral Commission for the purpose of
the application.

 
If this information is not included on the membership form, we will not be able to accept it.
 
Digital signatures are acceptable. The Commission will accept the following types of signatures captured electronically
for party membership purposes:

Images of signatures that are electronic replications of actual pen-and-paper signatures, such as scanned or
photographic images
Images of signatures that are produced and captured electronically using technologies such as signature pads,
trackpads/touchpads or the mouse, light pens, or similar devices.

 
Please ensure that signatures are clearly displayed on the forms of the members on whose behalf they are signed.
 
Digital forms are acceptable on their own, provided they meet the above requirements.
 
I hope this answers your queries.
 
Ngā mihi
Braedyn
 
Braedyn  (he/him) | Advisor Legal
Electoral Commission – Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri
PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34-42 Manners Street, Wellington
+  | vote.nz | elections.nz  
 

 
 
---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: m.johnston
Date: 7/11/2023, 3:12:03 PM
Dear Sir/Madam, I am writing to notify you that the newly formed political party, NZ Loyal, intend to go through the
registration process. 
 



Can you please let me know asap if our current membership form meets your criteria and if not, what needs to be
changed. Do we need to print out physical copies of membership forms and put signatures on it, on top of the digital
version we have them signing up to? OR will this digital form be acceptable on it's own:
https://nzloyal.org.nz/pages/membership_form
 
Is there anything else we need to know at this stage?
 
Kind regards,
Michele
 
Sent with Proton Mail secure email.
 



















Electoral Commission Cyber Security Warning: This email originated from outside of the Commission. Please take
extra care when clicking links or opening attachments. When in doubt, contact the IT Service Desk.

Sent: Sunday, July 23, 2023 5:56 PM
To: Kristina Temel < @elections.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Application to register New Zealand Loyal

Kia ora Kristina, can you please confirm that I understand you correctly - are you saying that
you are not going to accept the form of signature we have submitted with our membership
forms? If so, I find this unbelievable as digital certificates, such as those created by PandaDoc in
our membership forms, are used for mortgages and other legal documents.
If, however, you will not accept PandaDoc digital certificates, we will be lodging new
membership forms with an "approved" format of signature within the appropriate timeline. Can
you please let me know ASAP if there is anything else which I need to be aware of in regards to
our membership forms - are there any other things which we need to amend, change etc.?
Can you please clarify ASAP, thanks?
Nga mihi,
Michele
On Fri, 21 Jul 2023 at 15:58, Kristina Temel < @elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michele Smith
Thank you for your application to register New Zealand Loyal as a party in the 2023 General Election, which we
received last week on Thursday 13 July 2023.
We are in the process of completing an initial assessment of your application and have identified a potential issue with
the process that has been used to capture signatures for the membership forms, provided as part of the application.
The signatures attached to the membership forms appear not to be in a format that the Electoral Commission has
advised it can accept.
As advised in our email to @protonmail.com on 11 July 2023, and as set out in the Party Registration
Handbook, the Commission will accept digital signatures, provided they are either electronic replications of pen-and-
paper signatures (such as scanned or photographic images) or signatures that are produced and captured electronically
using technologies such as signature pads, trackpads/touchpads or the mouse, light pens, or similar devices. This is to
ensure the verification of the signatures.
Digital certificates, such as those created by PandaDoc in the membership forms, do not appear to meet this
requirement.
Although the application is still at the initial assessment stage, we think it is necessary to immediately raise with you
that the membership forms are unlikely to be accepted as sufficient evidence by the Electoral Commission Board due
to the signature format.
We would recommend that you consider submitting new versions of the membership forms with signatures that meet
the format requirements set out above.
If you wish to proceed based on the membership forms that you have submitted in their current format, the Electoral
Commission Board will need to determine whether the membership evidence submitted with your application can be
accepted. Should you wish to do this, please provide any additional information that you would like the Board to
consider about the process that has been used to ‘capture’ the signature using the digital certificate, the type of digital
signature it uses, and any other points you would like the Board to consider.
Time is of the essence, since your application was lodged just over eight weeks before the deadline for parties to
register to contest the election. The Commission is not able to register parties from writ day, which will be on Sunday
10 September, until the return of the writ for the election. In effect, this means the last date for a party registration
application to be finalised is Friday 8 September.
As set out in the Party Registration Handbook, we advise parties to allow a minimum of eight weeks for the
Commission to process an application for party registration, including:
• one week for the Commission to complete an initial assessment of the application
• two weeks to undertake membership checks (including contacting members)
• one week to arrange for the public consultation advertisements to be published
• two weeks for public comment on the application, and
• two weeks to finalise the application if no objections are received.
This timeframe is indicative only, and as we explain in our handbook, if there are issues with the application which
require the party to amend its application or provide further information, this processing time will be extended.
We will await your instruction before proceeding further with the preliminary checking of the membership evidence
provided. Time is critical given the proximity to writ day for the general election. Please let us know as soon as possible
which option you intend to pursue.
I have attached a copy of the party registration application form. It has been dated but not signed at section 9 on page
4 of the PDF. Please sign the form and send it back to me.
The statutory declaration on page 6 of the PDF has not been completed at item 3. You need to complete the section
that says whether you have or do not have component parties and get it resigned in the presence of the Justice of the
Peace.
Ngā mihi



Kristina Temel
Manager, Legal and Policy
Kristina Temel | Manager, Legal and Policy | Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri
PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34 – 42 Manners Street | Wellington | 6140
Phone  | vote.nz | elections.nz



Electoral Commission Cyber Security Warning: This email originated from outside of the Commission. Please
take extra care when clicking links or opening attachments. When in doubt, contact the IT Service Desk.

Electoral Commission Cyber Security Warning: This email originated from outside of the Commission. Please
take extra care when clicking links or opening attachments. When in doubt, contact the IT Service Desk.

From: Michele Johnston
To: Dean 
Cc: Ella 
Subject: Re: Application to register New Zealand Loyal
Date: Friday, 28 July 2023 3:45:28 pm
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Dean, thank you very much for confirming you don't need the original, and my correct phone
number is .

Nga mihi,
Michele 

On Fri, 28 Jul 2023 at 15:33, Dean  < @elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michele,

 

I am replying on Kristina’s behalf.

 

Thank you for sending this through, much appreciated. We don’t need the original to be delivered.

 

I did try to phone you just now using the phone number on the application form:  but it didn’t work – just
checking that this is the correct ph no?

 

Nga mihi

 

Dean  | Senior Advisor Legal | Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri  

PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34-42 Manners Street | Wellington

Phone  |

 

 

 

 

 

From: Michele Johnston < > 
Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2023 4:31 PM
To: Kristina Temel < @elections.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Application to register New Zealand Loyal

 

 

Hi Kristina, please find attached our new party registration form, duly signed and dated.  Do
you also need the original delivered to you, or will this suffice?

 

You already have the letter for Auditors Consent to Appoint (attached to our original party
registration form) so I have not attached it again here.



Electoral Commission Cyber Security Warning: This email originated from outside of the Commission.
Please take extra care when clicking links or opening attachments. When in doubt, contact the IT Service Desk.

 

Regards,

Michele Smith

 

 

On Tue, 25 Jul 2023 at 14:28, Kristina Temel < @elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michele,

 

Thanks for letting us know. 

 

We don’t need the material in both digital format as well as hard copy.  Hard copy only is fine.

 

Kind regards

 

Kristina

 

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
Sent: Tuesday, July 25, 2023 2:04 PM
To: Kristina Temel < @elections.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Application to register New Zealand Loyal

 

 

Kia ora, I can confirm that we will be re-submitting the membership forms with signatures in a format approved
by the Electoral Commission as soon as possible. I also acknowledge that the last date for a party registration
application to be finalised is on Friday 8 September, as specified in your email dated Friday 21 July 2023.

 

Do you need them in both digital format as well as hard copy, or can we submit in hard copy only?



Electoral Commission Cyber Security Warning: This email originated from outside of the Commission.

 

I will also email you the registration form back as soon as I have had it signed by a JP. 

 

Kind regards,
Michele

 

On Mon, 24 Jul 2023 at 14:51, Kristina Temel < @elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michele,

Thank you for your response over the weekend.

The signatures attached to the membership forms are not in a format that we can progress within the policy the
Electoral Commission Board has approved for party registrations. However, at this stage the Commission’s Board
has not made a formal determination on this matter. We highlighted this issue with you as soon as possible to flag
with you that the digital signatures are unlikely to be accepted so that you can consider what you want to do. 

Please let me know whether you want the Board to make a decision on the acceptability of the digital signatures,
or whether you will lodge new membership forms at this stage. If you want the Board to make a decision, we will
need to schedule time for the Board to be briefed on this matter, which is likely to be at the end of this week or
next week at the earliest.  

Apart from the signatures, the membership form that has been used contains all of the other information that is
required for a party application.    

The rest of the application is otherwise complete, except for the two matters raised in my email – the signature on
the party registration application form and item 3 in the statutory declaration on page 6 of the PDF (declaration re
component parties). 

At this stage, we also check that the auditor is eligible to be appointed as an auditor for the purposes of the
Electoral Act 1993.  We are seeking confirmation from Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand and
will advise as soon as we hear back. 

 

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

 



Please take extra care when clicking links or opening attachments. When in doubt, contact the IT Service
Desk.

 

Kia ora Kristina, can you please confirm that I understand you correctly - are you saying
that you are not going to accept the form of signature we have submitted with our
membership forms?  If so, I find this unbelievable as digital certificates, such as those
created by PandaDoc in our membership forms, are used for mortgages and other legal
documents.

 

If, however, you will not accept PandaDoc digital certificates, we will be lodging new
membership forms with an "approved" format of signature within the appropriate
timeline.  Can you please let me know ASAP if there is anything else which I need to be
aware of in regards to our membership forms - are there any other things which we need
to amend, change etc.? 

 

Can you please clarify ASAP, thanks?

 

Nga mihi,

Michele

 

On Fri, 21 Jul 2023 at 15:58, Kristina Temel < @elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michele Smith

 

Thank you for your application to register New Zealand Loyal as a party in the 2023 General Election, which
we received last week on Thursday 13 July 2023.

 

We are in the process of completing an initial assessment of your application and have identified a potential
issue with the process that has been used to capture signatures for the membership forms, provided as part of
the application. The signatures attached to the membership forms appear not to be in a format that the Electoral
Commission has advised it can accept.

 

As advised in our email to  on 11 July 2023, and as set out in the Party
Registration Handbook, the Commission will accept digital signatures, provided they are either electronic
replications of pen-and-paper signatures (such as scanned or photographic images) or signatures that are
produced and captured electronically using technologies such as signature pads, trackpads/touchpads or the
mouse, light pens, or similar devices. This is to ensure the verification of the signatures.

 

Digital certificates, such as those created by PandaDoc in the membership forms, do not appear to meet this
requirement.

 

Although the application is still at the initial assessment stage, we think it is necessary to immediately raise with
you that the membership forms are unlikely to be accepted as sufficient evidence by the Electoral Commission
Board due to the signature format.

 

We would recommend that you consider submitting new versions of the membership forms with signatures that
meet the format requirements set out above.

 

If you wish to proceed based on the membership forms that you have submitted in their current format, the



Electoral Commission Board will need to determine whether the membership evidence submitted with your
application can be accepted. Should you wish to do this, please provide any additional information that you
would like the Board to consider about the process that has been used to ‘capture’ the signature using the digital
certificate, the type of digital signature it uses, and any other points you would like the Board to consider. 

 

Time is of the essence, since your application was lodged just over eight weeks before the deadline for parties
to register to contest the election. The Commission is not able to register parties from writ day, which will be on
Sunday 10 September, until the return of the writ for the election. In effect, this means the last date for a party
registration application to be finalised is Friday 8 September.

 

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

 

This timeframe is indicative only, and as we explain in our handbook, if there are issues with the application
which require the party to amend its application or provide further information, this processing time will be
extended. 

 

We will await your instruction before proceeding further with the preliminary checking of the membership
evidence provided. Time is critical given the proximity to writ day for the general election. Please let us know
as soon as possible which option you intend to pursue. 

 

I have attached a copy of the party registration application form.  It has been dated but not signed at section 9
on page 4 of the PDF.  Please sign the form and send it back to me. 

 

The statutory declaration on page 6 of the PDF has not been completed at item 3.  You need to complete the
section that says whether you have or do not have component parties and get it resigned in the presence of the
Justice of the Peace.   

 

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



 

 

 



1. PARTY NAME
Please enter the name exactly as you wish it to appear in the Register and on ballot papers

Name of political party

Abbreviation of party name (if any)

Do you want the abbreviated party name on the ballot paper (if applicable)      YES         NO

2. PARTY SECRETARY’S DETAILS
Contact details of the party secretary will appear in the Register of Political Parties

Name of party secretary 

Postal address

Telephone

Mobile

Email

Application for registration of a political party  
and logo pursuant to Part 4 of the Electoral Act 1993

Completing this form:
• Please refer to the Party Registration Handbook at elections.nz before completing this form.
• This application form is for use by political parties that want to register as a political party to 

contest parliamentary elections.
• The form can also be used to register the party’s logo to be printed on ballot papers.
• Only the party secretary or an MP who is a current financial member of the party can apply 

to register the party or logo.
• Information on this form is collected under the Electoral Act 1993.
• Fill in the checklist at the end of the form to ensure your application is complete before 

sending it to the Electoral Commission. Failure to submit the proper documentation will 
result in delays in the registration process.

• You can complete the form electronically or by hand. If you fill in the form by hand please 
write clearly and use BLOCK LETTERS and black or blue ink. 

• You will need to print the form to sign the application and complete and sign the statutory 
declarations, which must be witnessed.

• If you have any questions, please contact us at enquiries@elections.govt.nz or 04 495 0030.

New Zealand Loyal

NZ Loyal

Michele Smith

 





6. AUDITOR’S CONSENT TO THE APPOINTMENT 
Or attach a signed letter of consent from the auditor   

I hereby confirm that I am eligible to be appointed under section 206K of the Electoral Act and 
consent to being appointed as the auditor of the party.

Name of auditor 

Signature

Date

7. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To be completed if the Electoral Amendment Bill 2022 is passed requiring parties to file 
financial statements annually.

From 1 January 2023 registered parties have to file an annual financial statement. The date the 
annual financial statement is due will depend on the status of the party (incorporated or not). 
You need to confirm the legal status of the party, the date the annual financial statement is due 
and whether the statement has to be audited below. 

1. Is the party is an incorporated society or an 
unincorporated body (if neither please state 
the legal status of the party)?

2. If the party is an incorporated society, when 
is the annual financial statement provided 
to the Registrar of Incorporated Societies?

Date

3. If the party is not an incorporated society, 
but has a date under the party constitution 
by which statements must be prepared, 
what is that date?

Date

4. Where neither 2 or 3 above applies the 
deadline for providing the annual financial 
statement is 30 Sept each year

        YES               NO

5. Does the party constitution or any 
enactment require an auditor’s report on the 
annual financial statement?

        YES               NO

See attached signed letter of consent

N/A

N/A

N/A





CHECKLIST Tick if complete

Have you included the name of the party EXACTLY as you want it to appear in the 
Register and be printed on ballot papers?

If you wish to register an abbreviation of the party name, have you included it 
EXACTLY as you want it to be printed on ballot papers?

If there is an abbreviation of the party name, have you confirmed whether it will be 
the name that appears on the ballot paper? 

Have you provided your contact details (and details for the party secretary if the 
party secretary has not made the application)?

Have you provided the name and contact details for the auditor?

Has the auditor signed the consent to appointment section of the form or have you 
provided a signed letter of consent from the auditor?

Have you provided the date when your annual financial statement will be provided 
to the Commission? 

Have you signed the application?

Have you provided signed membership evidence of at least 500 (and no more than 
550) current financial members sorted alphabetically by surname?

Have you provided an electronic spreadsheet of the membership evidence sorted 
alphabetically by surname?

Have you completed the statutory declaration for the party registration application 
required by sections 63(2)(c)(vii), 63(2)(ca), and 63(2)(d) of the Electoral Act 1993?  

Have you paid the $500 application fee?

Payment into the Electoral Commission’s bank account 02-0506-0077435-00 
(please include the name of the party as the reference).  

Date of payment

         /        /

Have you provided a copy of the party’s constitution or rules? 

If not provided with the application you must provide a copy within one month of 
the party being registered

Have you provided two electronic copies of the colour logo (one must be marked 
up with PMS (Pantone Matching System) codes for the colours, with each element 
of the logo labelled with its respective PMS code) and a black and white version of 
the logo in each of the following formats: 

• high resolution .eps (5cm wide, 350dpi, CMYK)

• high resolution .jpg (5cm wide, 350dpi, RGB)

• low resolution .jpg (300 pixels wide, 72 dpi, RGB)

Have you completed the statutory declaration for the party logo application 
required by section 71C(2)(b)(iv) of the Electoral Act 1993?

12 07 2023







Electoral Commission Cyber Security Warning: This email originated from outside
of the Commission. Please take extra care when clicking links or opening attachments.
When in doubt, contact the IT Service Desk.

From: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz
To: Dean 
Subject: NZ Loyal"s Constitution
Date: Thursday, 10 August 2023 4:32:05 pm
Attachments: image1691641864696

Kia ora Dean, in regard to submitting our Constitution to you, do we have one month from
when we submitted our membership forms, or is it one month from date of actual registration
i.e. after the Open Consultation has concluded?

Also, I now have a NZ Loyal email address. Can you please save this for your records?

Nga mihi,
Michele

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
  



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
Subject: Response to Submissions
Date: Monday, 28 August 2023 10:00:20 am
Attachments: image1693173566353

Dear Dean, in response to the submissions received I put forward these responses. 

1. Submission 1. We do not agree with this objection. We have within the bi-line an
emphasis that it is a political party loyal to new Zealanders. The contrast is with
overseas groupings who fall under them, that we feel is a valid political platform for a
NZ political party to emphasise that we are standing up for New Zealanders. 

2. Submission 2.  We do not agree that the colour is orange. Our colour palette is gold to
emphasise the abundance within the New Zealand nation. We do not agree that there
will be any confusion in the public mind with the colour palette of the Electoral
Commission. Further, we do not agree that NZL cannot be used by all New Zealanders
including by a party standing for New Zealanders. NZL is not owned by anyone, it
belongs to all of us as we saw in its use by a very successful yachting team with no
objection. We therefore believe this to be a specious objection.  

3. Submission 3. We do not agree with the objection in this submission. Loyal is a time-
honoured term that has been used by previous generations to inspire kiwis to come
together around a cause for their country, including in both world wars. It is a name
used to inspire, to unite, to bring an excitement to the election. 

4. As for the argument of you against them, those arguments are implicit within the contest
for any election. The parties are competing against one another. This submission does
not qualify as a common sense or logical submission. 

5. Submission 4. As the person making this submission says in line 2 “to me loyal is…”.
Surely the electoral commission cannot believe every person’s emotional reaction or
personal belief about what a word means. Our party’s name, Loyal means something
different to every kiwi. The bias of the person doing submission 4 is on full display in
line 4, where they make a vast assumption which is patently incorrect. 

Warmest,
Michele

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
  



EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING: Do not open any attachments or links until you are certain they are safe. Beware of phishing attacks,
check the sender address. Always report emails you are not certain are safe.

From: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz
To: EC Legal
Subject: Annual financial statement 2023
Date: Wednesday, 10 July 2024 10:49:25 am
Attachments: image001.jpg

image002.png
image003.png
image004.jpg
image1720565287674
NZL-Financial-Statements-2023.pdf

Good morning.  Please find attached the New Zealand Loyal financial statement for 2023.  Apologies for the delay in getting this to you. 

Kind regards,
Michele

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
  

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may
contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message and notify the sender. You should not read, copy, use, change, alter, or

disclose this email or its attachments without authorisation.  New Zealand Loyal and any related or associated companies do not accept any liability in connection with

this email and any attachments including in connection with computer viruses, data corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access, or unauthorised amendment.

Any views expressed in this email and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of NZ Loyal or the views of any of our related or associated companies. 

On Friday, July 5th, 2024 at 1:38 PM, EC Legal < @Elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michele

 

As per your earlier conversation, attached is a PDF of the Party Portal webpage on financial statements.

 

The table from this page has been copied below as it has been cut off in the PDF:

 

1 Is the party is an incorporated society or an unincorporated body? If neither please state the legal status of the
party.

2 If the party is an incorporated society, when is the annual financial statement
provided to the Registrar of Incorporated Societies?

A copy should be provided to the Electoral
Commission at the same time, and no later
than 6 months after the party’s balance date.

3 If the party is not an incorporated society, but has a date under the party constitution
by which statements must be prepared, what is that date?

A copy should be provided to the Electoral
Commission within 6 months after the party’s
balance date.

4 Do neither 2 or 3 above apply? The deadline for providing the annual
financial statement is 30 September each
year.

5 Does the party constitution or any enactment require an auditor’s report on the
annual financial statement?

If so, the auditor's report must be provided to
the Commission at the same time as the
annual financial statement.

 

Here are the hyperlinks from the page, for your convenience:

Financial Reporting Act 2013
External Reporting Board
NZASB
More information is available here

 

 

Ngā mihi

 

Legal and Policy Team | Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri  

PO Box 3220 | Level 4, 34 – 42 Manners Street | Wellington | 6140 | New Zealand

Phone 0800 36 76 56 | vote.nz | elections.nz





EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING: Do not open any attachments or links until you are certain they are safe.
Beware of phishing attacks, check the sender address. Always report emails you are not certain are safe.

regarding your failure to file.   

 

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

 

From: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz <michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz> 
Sent: Thursday, July 4, 2024 8:11 AM
To: EC Legal < @Elections.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Annual financial statement - not submitted

 

 

Can you please give me some guidance on what to do here?

 

Thank you,

Michele

 

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
  

 

 

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may
contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message and notify the sender. You should not read,
copy, use, change, alter, or disclose this email or its attachments without authorisation.  New Zealand Loyal and any related or associated
companies do not accept any liability in connection with this email and any attachments including in connection with computer viruses,
data corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access, or unauthorised amendment. Any views expressed in this email and any
attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of NZ Loyal or the views of any of our related or associated companies. 

 

On Thursday, July 4th, 2024 at 7:42 AM, michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz <michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz> wrote:

Morning, the email you refer to will not open for me. Can you please send a screen shot for me to see what you're
talking about?

 

As mentioned previously I was of the belief that we did not have to do financial statements until the end of the
year, which is how I read the party registration handbook (see screen shot from the handbook below) and, as
such, do not currently have financial statements prepared.

 





EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING: Do not open any attachments or links until you are
certain they are safe. Beware of phishing attacks, check the sender address. Always report
emails you are not certain are safe.

 

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
Sent: Tuesday, July 2, 2024 10:50 PM
To: EC Legal < @Elections.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Annual financial statement - not submitted

 

 

Hello, we are an unincorporated society.  As such, we were of the understanding that we prepare our
financial statement in accordance with our constitution which specifies our financial year is 1 January
to 31 December.  We are therefore required to provide financial statements at the end of the year - is
that correct?

 

Thanks,

Michele 

 

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
 |  

 

 

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may
contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message and notify the
sender. You should not read, copy, use, change, alter, or disclose this email or its attachments without
authorisation.  New Zealand Loyal and any related or associated companies do not accept any liability in
connection with this email and any attachments including in connection with computer viruses, data
corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access, or unauthorised amendment. Any views expressed in this
email and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of NZ Loyal or the views of any of our related or
associated companies. 

 

On Tuesday, July 2nd, 2024 at 2:29 PM, EC Legal <l @Elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michele

 

The statutory deadline for filing your annual financial statements was 1 July 2024.
According to our records to date you have not submitted the financial statements by
this date.

Could you please provide us an update on the progress of New Zealand Loyal’s
annual financial statements and if you have any questions about the requirements, or
you want to provide further information about why you have failed to file your
financial statements by the due date, please email the Legal and Policy team at the



Electoral Commission at @elections.govt.nz.

 

You need to be aware that it is an offence not to file annual financial statements by
the due date without reasonable excuse. 

 

We will be publishing financial statements due by 1 July later this week.

 

If the Electoral Commission has not received your annual financial statements and a
satisfactory explanation of the reasons why it is overdue by 5pm, 15 July 2024, the
matter may have to be referred to the Police.  

 

Ngā mihi

 

 

Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri

PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34 – 42 Manners Street | Wellington | 6140 | New Zealand

Phone 0800 36 76 56 | vote.nz | elections.nz

 

 

From: EC Legal < @Elections.govt.nz> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 3:35 PM
Subject: Reminder for parties whose financial statements are due by 30 June 2024

 

Kia ora party secretary

 

A quick reminder the deadline for you to file your annual financial statement is 30
June 2024. As this is on a Sunday the legal deadline is by 5pm on 1 July. Your
financial statement, and audit report as applicable, can be uploaded via the Party
Portal, emailed to @elections.govt.nz or delivered to the Commission’s office at
Level 4, 34-42 Manners Street, Wellington.

 

We are planning to publish financial statements due by 30 June by the end of next
week here: Annual financial statements | Elections. As with other compliance
reporting, we will publish a short media item on our website when the financial
statements are published.

 

Ngā mihi

 

Kristina Temel | Manager, Legal and Policy | Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take
Kōwhiri  

PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34 – 42 Manners Street | Wellington | 6140

Phone  | vote.nz | elections.nz

 

 



 





Item description
Provide details of the type of advertisement, name of advertiser or supplier,  

volume, duration and size as appropriate

Value $0.00 
(inc GST)

Page: 3PART A

Coporate Print, One  1.2  x 1.2 Liz Gunn/NZ loyal Billboards $ 74.75

Nationwide Speaking Tour (Excl. Northland) Team Total Cost for Hotels/food/accomodation - 15/09/23 - 18/10/23 $ 21,839.65

C. Jauernig, Admin Help With Shopify Merchandise Sales 04/09/23 - 24/09/23 $ 900.00

C. Harrison (Real Social) - Social Media/digital strategy + Marketing (31/07/23 - 13/10/23) + Apartment Lease(7/8/23) $ 42,308.52

Northland Speaking Tour Total Costs for Food/accomodation 15/09/23 - 21/09/23 $ 900.00

Fotor Graphic Professional Subscription Annually, for graphics & vdeo thumbnails Jul 20, 2023 – Jul 20, 2024 $ 32.12

Apple MacBook (+ Apple Care) Air 15" Laptop with M2 Chip - For Video recorded Interviews whilst travelling - 20/07/23 $ 3,228.00

H. Tindall , Email Administration + newsletter writing, 14/07/23 - 13/10/23 $ 4,100.00

Protonmail Email hosting for party personnel 14/07/23 - 13/10/23 $ 1,596.86

Oranus (supporter), for 800 A5 Party Flyers 11/10/23 $ 200.00

NZL Tour - Stay At Croydon Lodge, Gore from 12/10/23 - 16/10/23 $ 5,277.00

Lease of Bus + update WOF for NZ Loyal speaking tour from M. Jones. 29/08/23 - 13/10/23 $ 3,794.66

J. Tapp, local promotional work Invercargill 10/09/23 $ 1,000.00

J. Blake, Signage building in Wellington 29/08/23 $ 500.00

Air NZ Flights for speaking engagements, L. Gunn, 17/08/23 & 09/10/23 $ 2,403.00

Alexandra Bowling Club - Meeting Room Hire 23/08/23 $ 115.00

Croydon Lodge - Function Room Hire 24/08/23 $ 240.00

Winton Commercial Hotel - Function Room Hire 29/08/23 $ 350.00

Twitter/X - Social Media Platform Monthly Account Subscription for the party, 14/07/23 - 13/10/23 $ 65.00

Arrowtown Bowling Club - Meeting Room Hire 03/09/23 $ 115.00

Pumphouse Print Ltd. 13,000 A5 Leaflets Double Sided 300gsm Silk Card + 1500 A5 Leaflets Double Sided 300gsm Silk 
Card + Freight - 20/08/2023

$ 3,752.45

Upper Cuts Butchery Ltd, Election Night Catering Services, 14.10.23
$ 1,393.50

Southern Field Days, Woolshed Function Centre Hire - 14th October 2023
$ 500.00



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
Provide a brief description of the type of advertisement, name of advertiser or supplier, volume, duration  

and size as appropriate as well as the name of the third party which promoted the advertising

Value $0.00 
(inc GST)
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PART F: CANDIDATE ONLY BROADCASTING ALLOCATION EXPENSES

Supplier’s name  
and street address

Invoice date  
or dates

Description of  
allocation of expenses

Candidate 
name

Value $0.00 
(inc GST)

In Part F record the party’s broadcasting allocation used to produce or place a 
candidate election advertisement on TV, radio or the internet.

PROVIDE the following information below:

• Supplier’s name and address: This should be the media buyer or broadcaster  
on the invoice provided to the Electoral Commission for payment of the account

• Invoice date or dates

• Description of allocation of expenses: List the total production costs,  
TV placement, radio placement and internet placement costs for each  
supplier separately

• Candidate name

• Value $0.00 inc GST

Advertising paid for using the broadcasting allocation is excluded from the 
definition of party election expense. However, it is not excluded from the definition 
of candidate expense. If you use the allocation to produce a candidate election 
advertisement on TV, radio or online, the costs should also be disclosed in the 
candidate’s return as an election expense and a donation from the party.

EXAMPLE: Make Believe Television
84 Shortland Street
Auckland 6000

1st and 10th of 
October 2023

Production cost

13 September – 12 October 2023
TV placement costs on Channel A  
and Channel B

1 – 13 October 2023
Radio placement costs on Radio X and Y

20 – 30 September 2023
Social Media promotional posts

WRITE ‘NIL’ IF YOU HAVE NO EXPENSES TO DECLARE HERE:

TOTAL FOR PART F

$62,450

$10,000M Brown

T Smith

T Smith

M Brown $11,450

$300

Page: 21PART F

NIL

$ 0.00



Supplier’s name  
and street address

Invoice date  
or dates

Description of  
allocation of expenses

Candidate 
name

Value $0.00 
(inc GST)
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MFA Audit 

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT 

 

To the Members of New Zealand Loyal and Electoral Commission 

 

Opinion 

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on New Zealand Loyal's compliance, in all 

material respects, with the Electoral Act 1993 (the compliance requirements) as evaluated against the 

party return expenses comply with the sections 206L and 206LA of in the Electoral Act 1993 (the 

specific criteria) throughout the period ended 13 October 2023 in relation to the party return expenses 

form comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993 for the purpose of reporting to the Electoral 

Commission. 

 

In our opinion, New Zealand Loyal has complied, in all material respects with the Sections 206L and 

206LA of the Electoral Act 1993 as evaluated against the party return expenses form comply with the 

sections in the Electoral Act 1993 throughout period ended 13 October 2023. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements SAE 3100 

(Revised) Compliance Engagements, and ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) International Standard on 

Assurance Engagements issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 

 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 

 

New Zealand Loyal Responsibilities 

New Zealand Loyal is responsible for: 

(a) The compliance activity undertaken to meet the compliance requirements. 

 

(b) Identification of risks that threaten the compliance requirements identified above being 

met and controls which will mitigate those risks and monitor ongoing compliance. 

 

Our Independence and Quality Control 

We have complied with the relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance engagements, which 

include independence and other requirements founded on fundamental principles of integrity, 

objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour. 

 

In accordance with the Professional and Ethical Standard 3 (Amended) MFA Audit maintains a 

comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding 

compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory 

requirements. 

 

Assurance Practitioner’s Responsibilities 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on New Zealand Loyal's compliance, in all material respects, 

with the compliance requirements as evaluated against the specific criteria throughout the period 

ended 13 October 2023. SAE 3100 (Revised) requires that we plan and perform our procedures to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether New Zealand Loyal has complied, in all material respects, 

with the compliance requirements as evaluated against the specific criteria, throughout period ended 

13 October 2023. 

 

 



 

MFA Audit 

 

An assurance engagement to report on New Zealand Loyal compliance with the compliance 

requirements involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the compliance activity and 

controls implemented to meet the compliance requirements. The procedures selected depend on our 

judgement, including the identification and assessment of risks of material non-compliance with the 

compliance requirements as evaluated against the specific criteria. 

 

Other than in our capacity as the independent assurance practitioners we have no relationship with, 

or interests in, New Zealand Loyal. 

 

Inherent Limitations 

Because of the inherent limitations of an assurance engagement, together with the internal control 

structure it is possible that fraud, error, or non-compliance with compliance requirements may occur 

and not be detected. 

 

A reasonable assurance engagement throughout period ended 13 October 2023 does not provide 

assurance on whether compliance with the compliance requirements will continue in the future. 

 

Use of Report 

This report has been prepared for New Zealand Loyal and the Electoral Commission for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on New Zealand Loyal's compliance, in all material respects, with the 

compliance requirements as evaluated against the specific criteria throughout the period ended 13 

October 2023. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report to any 

persons or users other than the Electoral Commission or for any purpose other than that for which it 

was prepared. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Andrew Ford 

MFA Audit 

13 March 2024 

Auckland 
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T 09 379 7340 

admin@mfal.co.nz 
www.mfal.co.nz  

Level 17 
120 Albert Street 

Auckland 1010 
PO Box 3529  

Auckland 1140 

12 March 2024 
 
 
New Zealand Loyal 

 
       

Attention: Michele Smith 
 
 
Dear Michele, 
 
New Zealand Loyal - Engagement Letter 
 
Objective and scope of the engagement 
You have requested that we undertake a reasonable assurance engagement to report on New Zealand 
Loyal's compliance with the Sections 206 of the Electoral Act 1993 (the "compliance requirements") 
as evaluated against the party expense return form comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993, 
(the "specific criteria") in all material respects, throughout the period ended 13 October 2023 in 
relation to party return expenses comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993 of New Zealand 
Loyal for the purpose of reporting to Electoral Commission. 
 
We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this reasonable assurance 
engagement by means of this letter. Our assurance engagement will be conducted with the objective 
of expressing an opinion on New Zealand Loyal's party expenses return form comply with the sections 
in the Electoral Act 1993 and complies with the compliance requirements, in all material respects, as 
evaluated against the specific criteria throughout the period ended 13 October 2023. 
 
Our Independence and Quality Control 
We will comply with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance 
engagements, and apply Professional and Ethical Standard 3, "Quality Control for Firms that Perform 
Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and Other Assurance Engagements" in undertaking this 
assurance engagement. 
 
Responsibilities of the assurance practitioner 
We will conduct our assurance engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements 
SAE 3100 (Revised) Compliance Engagements, and ISAE (NZ) 3000 (Revised) International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements. SAE 3100 (Revised) requires that we comply with ethical requirements 
applicable to assurance engagements and plan and perform procedures to obtain reasonable 
assurance that New Zealand Loyal's party return expenses comply with the sections in the Electoral 
Act 1993 is fairly stated, in all material respects. 
 
A reasonable assurance engagement on compliance involves performing procedures to obtain 
evidence about New Zealand Loyal's party return expenses comply with the sections in the Electoral 
Act 1993 compliance with the compliance requirements to meet the specific criteria. The procedures 



 

MFA Audit 

selected depend on what we consider necessary applying our professional judgement, including the 
assessment of risks of material deficiencies in the compliance framework or misstatements in New 
Zealand Loyal's party return expenses comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an assurance engagement, together with the inherent 
limitations of any system of internal control there is an unavoidable risk that some deficiencies in the 
compliance framework or misstatements in New Zealand Loyal's party return expenses comply with 
the sections in the Electoral Act 1993 may not be detected, even though the engagement is properly 
planned and performed in accordance with Standards on Assurance Engagements. 
 
Responsibilities of the Party and Party Secretary 
Our assurance engagement will be conducted on the basis that the Party Secretary acknowledge and 
understand that they have responsibility: 
 

(a) for the preparation of the party expenses return for the 2023 general election form which 
will be attached to our report that New Zealand Loyal has complied, in all material respects, 
with the compliance requirements as evaluated against the suitable criteria; 
(b) for identification of the compliance requirements if not identified by law or regulation; 
(c) for the identification of risks that threaten the compliance requirements identified above 
being met and for controls which will mitigate those risks and monitor ongoing compliance; 
and 
(d) to provide us with: 

(i) access to all information of which those charged with governance and management 
are aware that is relevant to New Zealand Loyal's party return expenses comply with 
the sections in the Electoral Act 1993 compliance with the compliance requirements 
as evaluated against the specific criteria; 
(ii) additional information that we may request from those charged with governance 
and management for the purposes of this assurance engagement; 
and 
(iii) unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain evidence. 

 
As part of our engagement, we will request from the party secretary written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the engagement. 
 
Errors, misstatements, illegal acts or other irregularities 
We will inform you of any matters that come to our attention in the course of performing the 
engagement which cause us to believe or suspect that errors or misstatements, illegal acts or other 
irregularities exist. 
 
We may, as part of our responsibilities as a Member in Public Practice, take steps and actions as set 
out in Section 260 of the Revised NZ Code of Ethics, issued by the Chartered Accountants Australia 
and New Zealand (CA ANZ) “Responding to Non-Compliance with Laws and Regulations”. These 
include but are not limited to the following: 
 
During the course of our engagement, if we identify or suspect that non-compliance with laws or 
regulations has occurred or may occur, we will discuss the matter with the appropriate level of 
management, those charged with governance or the internal auditor, as appropriate, to enable you 
to rectify, remediate or mitigate the consequences of the identified or suspected non-compliance or 
deter the commission of the non-compliance where it has not yet occurred. 
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We will also consider, based on materiality and/or significance of the matter, whether further action 
is needed in the public interest. 
Further action may include disclosing the matter to an appropriate authority even when there is no 
legal or regulatory requirement to do so or withdrawing from the engagement and the professional 
relationship where permitted by law or regulation. 
 
Where appropriate we will inform you of our intention to disclose the matter to an appropriate 
authority before disclosing the matter. However, if we have reason to believe that the actual or 
intended conduct would constitute an imminent breach of a law or regulation that would cause 
substantial harm to investors, creditors, employees or the general public, we may immediately 
disclose the matter to an appropriate authority in order to prevent or mitigate the consequences of 
such imminent breach of law or regulation. 
 
Form and Distribution of Report 
The format of the report will be in accordance with SAE 3100 (Revised) with respect to reasonable 
assurance engagements.  
 
New Zealand Loyal's party return expenses comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993 will be 
attached to the reasonable assurance report and our conclusion will be phrased in terms of whether 
New Zealand Loyal's party return expenses comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993 has 
complied with the compliance requirements and is, in all material respects, fairly presented as 
evaluated against the suitable criteria, throughout the period ended 13 October 2023. 
 
Our report will be prepared for the use of New Zealand Loyal and Electoral Commission, and may not 
be suitable for any other purpose. 
 
The assurance report will be prepared for this purpose only and we disclaim any assumption of 
responsibility for any reliance on our report to any person other than New Zealand Loyal and Electoral 
Commission, or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared. 
 
Information Required 
As part of our assurance engagement process, we will request from you written confirmation 
concerning representations made to us in connection with our work. We will also be requesting access 
to your records and making enquiries of Member and staff during the assurance process. 
 
We look forward to full cooperation with your staff and we trust that they will make available to us 
the records, documentation, and other information requested in connection with our engagement. 
 
Ownership of and access to engagement file 
The working papers and files for this engagement created by us during the course of the work, 
including electronic documents and files, are the sole property of MFA Audit and constitute 
confidential information. Requests by third parties for access to our working papers, including those 
made by parties entitled by law to compel us to provide such access, will be discussed with you prior 
to release of the information, other than by operation of law. 
 
Our firm utilises the services of Audit Assistant Limited to process our assurance work and as a 
repository of confidential documentation. Audit Assistant maintains this data in Australia and New 
Zealand. All data transfer and documents held are surely encrypted and access is restricted to our 
staff. Audit Assistant staff may only access confidential data with our express permission for support 
and review purposes. All access to confidential data is logged. 



MFA Audit 

As with all professional audit firms, our practice is subject to review by our Professional Body; 
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (CA ANZ). We are required to produce any 
document or other material in our possession or power and co-operate in the review process. The 
work we perform for you may be selected by the examiners for their review. If so, they are obliged to 
keep all information confidential. 

Fees 
Our fees, which will be billed as work progresses, are based on the time required by the individuals 
assigned to the engagement, plus out-of-pocket expenses.  

Complaints 
If you have any concerns about our costs or services, please speak to the person responsible for this 
engagement (signed below). We have policies and procedures in place to deal appropriately with any 
complaints and we will do our best to resolve any issues that may arise. We suggest that any such 
complaint be made in writing to allow us to investigate the issue raised. 

Application 
This letter will be effective for future years unless it is terminated, amended, or superseded by either 
ourselves or the Member. 

Yours faithfully, 

Andrew Ford 
MFA Audit 

Response 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate that it is in accordance with your 
understanding of the arrangements for our reasonable assurance engagement concerning the New 
Zealand Loyal expenses return comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993. 

We hereby acknowledge that this letter is in accordance with our understanding of the arrangements 
for the reasonable assurance compliance engagement for the New Zealand Loyal party expenses 
return comply with the sections in the Electoral Act 1993. 

_____________________________________ 
Michele Smith – Party Secretary 

___________________________________ 
Date 

12/03/2024



Net Profit (40,177.01) 

Electoral Commission P&L    New Zealand Loyal    8 July 2024 Page 1 of 1 

Profit and Loss
New Zealand Loyal 
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023

Revenue

Income 592,450.81

Total Revenue 592,450.81

OperaSng Expenses

Administration 84,833.96

Depreciation 3,563.10

Campaign Costs 395,880.23

Other Expenses 67,996.51

Total OperaSng Expenses 552,273.80



Balance Sheet 
New Zealand Loyal 
As at 31 December 2023 

Assets 

Current Assets 

31 DEC 2023 

Non-current Assets 
 

Property Plant and Equipment NIL 

Total Non-current Assets NIL 
 

Total Assets 51,807.01 

Liabilities 

Electoral Commission Balance Sheet    New Zealand Loyal    8 July 2024 Page 1 of 1

Other Current Assets 11,630

Cash and Bank 40,177.01

Total Current Assets 51,807.01

Current Liabilities NIL

Non-current Liabilities NIL

Total Liabilities NIL

Net Assets 51,807.01







Item description
Provide details of the type of advertisement, name of advertiser or supplier,  

volume, duration and size as appropriate

Value $0.00 
(inc GST)

Page: 3PART A

Coporate Print, One  1.2  x 1.2 Liz Gunn/NZ loyal Billboards
74.75

Nationwide Speaking Tour (Excl. Northland) Team Total Cost for Hotels/food/accomodation - 15/09/23 - 18/10/23
21839.65

C. Jauernig, Admin Help With Shopify Merchandise Sales 04/09/23 - 24/09/23
900

C. Harrison (Real Social) - Social Media/digital strategy + Marketing (31/07/23 - 13/10/23) + Apartment Lease(7/8/23)
42308.52

Northland Speaking Tour Total Costs for Food/accomodation 15/09/23 - 21/09/23 900

Fotor Graphic Professional Subscription Annually, for graphics & vdeo thumbnails Jul 20, 2023 – Jul 20, 2024
32.12

Apple MacBook (+ Apple Care) Air 15" Laptop with M2 Chip - For Video recorded Interviews whilst travelling - 20/07/23 3228

H. Tindall , Email Administration + newsletter writing, 14/07/23 - 13/10/23
4100

Protonmail Email hosting for party personnel 14/07/23 - 13/10/23
1596.86

Oranus (supporter), for 800 A5 Party Flyers 11/10/23
200.00

NZL Tour - Stay At Croydon Lodge, Gore from 12/10/23 - 16/10/23
5277

Lease of Bus + update WOF for NZ Loyal speaking tour from M. Jones. 29/08/23 - 13/10/23
3794.66

J. Tapp, local promotional work Invercargill 10/09/23
1000

J. Blake, Signage building in Wellington 29/08/23
500

Air NZ Flights for speaking engagements, L. Gunn, 17/08/23 & 09/10/23
2403

Alexandra Bowling Club - Meeting Room Hire 23/08/23
115

Croydon Lodge - Function Room Hire 24/08/23
240.00

Winton Commercial Hotel - Function Room Hire 29/08/23
350

Twitter/X - Social Media Platform Monthly Account Subscription for the party, 14/07/23 - 13/10/23
65

Arrowtown Bowling Club - Meeting Room Hire 03/09/23
115

Pumphouse Print Ltd. 13,000 A5 Leaflets Double Sided 300gsm Silk Card + 1500 A5 Leaflets Double Sided 300gsm Silk 
Card + Freight - 20/08/2023 3752.45

Upper Cuts Butchery Ltd, Election Night Catering Services, 14.10.23
1393.50

Southern Field Days, Woolshed Function Centre Hire - 14th October 2023
500

2400x600mm Landscape Billboard Sign. Graphic Design by Naissant Ltd - Design, Copywriting, Liaise, Prepress . Invoice: 
#620396. 17/09/2023. IN communicaiotn with Savvy Oldershaw (The Sign Factory) $133.56

NZ Loyal HQ T-shirts. Candidate Pete Arnott, NZ Loyal  
1200

The Sign Factory - Bumper Stickers. Candidate Pete Arnott, NZ Loyal   
425.5



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

Page: 5PART A



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

0



Supplier’s name  
and street address

Invoice date  
or dates

Description of  
allocation of expenses

Candidate 
name

Value $0.00 
(inc GST)
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New Zealand Loyal Party 

also known as NZLoyal

Membership Details 

(by signing below you agree to the following)

I have paid my membership fee of $20.00 for a 1 year membership with this application.

I authorise NZLoyal to record my name as a financial member of NZLoyal.

I authorise the secretary of NZLoyal to release this application form and subsequent financial 
membership details to the Electoral Commission for the purposes of NZLoyal's registration under the 
Electoral Act 1993.

Signed: Date:

[Signature of person applying]
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT 

 

To The Party Secretary of New Zealand Loyal 

 

Qualified Opinion 

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on New Zealand Loyal (the “Party”) 

compliance, in all material respects, with the Electoral Act 1993 (the “Act”) as evaluated against 

Section 210 and 214C throughout the period ended 31 December 2023 in relation to the Party 

Donations and Loan Return (the “Return”). 

 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualification Opinion 

paragraph, New Zealand Loyal has complied, in all material respects with the Electoral Act 1993 as 

evaluated against the Section 210 and 214C throughout period ended 31 December 2023. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Except for donations received via stripe and directly into the party bank account, there are limited 

controls that ensure donations and loans included in the Return are complete. Accordingly, we were 

unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence in this matter as there is no practical procedures to 

determine the effects of the limited control.  

 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance Engagements (SAE) 3100 

(Revised) Compliance Engagements issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards 

Board. 

 

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

qualified opinion. 

 

Party Secretary’s Responsibilities  

The Party Secretary is responsible for: 

 

(a) Preparation of the Return in compliance with the requirements of the Act;  

(b) The compliance activity undertaken to meet the requirements of the Act; and 

(c) Identification of risks that threaten compliance with the Act identified above being met and 

controls which will mitigate those risks and monitor ongoing compliance.  

 

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

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on New Zealand Loyal compliance, in all material respects, 

with the compliance requirements as evaluated against the specific criteria throughout the period 

ended 31 December 2023 in relation to the Party’s Donations and Loans Return. SAE 3100 (Revised) 

requires that we plan and perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 



 

MFA Audit 

New Zealand Loyal has complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements as 

evaluated against the specific criteria, throughout period ended 31 December 2023. 

 

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

or interests in, New Zealand Loyal - Donations and Loans Return. 

 

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

 

A reasonable assurance engagement throughout period ended 31 December 2023 does not provide 

assurance on whether compliance with the compliance requirements will continue in the future. 

 

Use of Report 

This report has been prepared for use by the Party Secretary in accordance with the requirements of 

the Act.  Our compliance work has been undertaken so we can state to the New Zealand Loyal Part 

Secretary those matters undertaken and for no other purpose.  To the fullest permitted by law, we do 

not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than New Zealand Loyal and the Party Secretary, 

for our compliance work, or for any other purpose other than that for which it was prepared.  

 

Other Matter 

The following Other Matter statements are not intended to detract from our conclusion: 

 

The New Zealand Loyal Party had overseas donations of more than $50. As this was the first year the 

party ran in the election they were focused on running in the 2023 election. Once these overseas 

donations were identified the amount over $50 was returned to the donor. 

 

 

 

 

 
Andrew Ford 

MFA Audit 

29 April 2024 

Auckland 
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Article 1: Name and Structure of the Party 
● The name of the Party is New Zealand Loyal (NZL). 

● Structure: Party Leader, Board, Candidates, Regional and/or Electorate Committees, 
Members, Volunteers. 

Registered Office 
The registered office of the Party will be at such place as the New Zealand Loyal board from time to 
time determines.  

Article 2: Objectives, Principles and Philosophies 
1. Objectives: 
● NZL was conceived and formed as a political organisation which provides Constituency and 

List Members of Parliament to represent all New Zealanders. 
● The objects for which NZL is established are to: 

● Promote and support policies which reflect the Core Philosophies of the Party. 
● Promote and manage the goals of the Party including the selection of and support 

for List and Electorate Constituency candidates for election to the New Zealand 
House of Representatives. 

● Establish and maintain a political party structure of national infrastructure to 
achieve these objectives. 

● Ensure prudential and fiscal oversight of all monies which comes into the possession 
of the Party. 

2. Principles: NZL recognises: 

● Parliament being a body of Representatives elected by universal suffrage forming part of the 
government of New Zealand and subject to transparency and accountability. 

● Separation of powers: Legislature, Government and Courts constitute a fundamental tenant 
of democracy. 

● The rights of all New Zealanders to: 

● Vote in parliamentary General Elections according to the law. 

● Equality before the law in race, religion, creed, colour, culture, gender, sexual 
orientation; freedom of political beliefs, freedom of speech and of association. 

● Provision of physical security and safety through and by agencies of the State and 
protection of legal rights through and by the Courts of the land. 

●  Free access to primary health care; primary education, provision of welfare 
assistance by the State where needs satisfy legal pre-requisites and the right to a 
state funded superannuation pension. 

● Pursue self-development through equal opportunity and without fear of favour or 
prejudice through or by agencies of the State. 
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3. Core Philosophies of NZL: 

● The Right to Equality for all before the law: Irrespective of race, creed, colour, religion of 
beliefs. 

● The Right to private property. 

● The Right to voice opinion without fear of censorship or penalty of any kind.  The only 
restrictions on speech that NZL recognises are the traditional constitutional-law restrictions 
relating to (1) content-neutral 'time, manner, place' regulations; and (2) narrowly construed 
'speech acts' that amount to direct incitement to violence. 

● The right to challenge government policy. 

● The right for empirical medical, legal, technical research, to be presented for public scrutiny 
without fear of vilification and penalty imposed by government bureaucrats. 

● The right to accept or reject medical intrusion, without reward or without penalty. 

● The right not to be detained by the State except as provided by statutory law where that law 
is not inconsistent with the Human Rights Act 1993 and/or the New Zealand Bill of Rights 
1990; and where detained, to never be denied due process of law. 

● The right to remain silent.   

● ALL OF THE POLICY STATEMENTS ENUNCIATED IN AND PUBLICISED VIA VIDEOS UPLOADED 
ONTO THE NZL OFFICIAL WEBSITE ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE. 

4. Party Structure 
● The Party shall consist of two Wings: The Administrative Wing (Article 5) and the 

Parliamentary Wing (Article 6). 

Article 3: Definitions 
● “Administrative Wing” means the Board of NZL including Regional Presidents and Electorate 

Chairs, this is also the “committee”.  
● “Annual Conference” means and includes the Annual General Meeting of the Party which 

shall elect persons to hold office in the Party.  
● “AGM of the Party” means the Annual General meeting of the Board and members. 
● ‘‘Annual Financial Report’ means financial reports required to be submitted to the AGM of 

the Party by the party Treasurer and Regional Presidents.  
● “Annual Report” means the end of year report on the business of either Regions or the 

Party, which must be presented to the membership of the AGM of the Party by the 
Secretary. 

● “Attend” includes presence of a person at the transaction of business by means of 
telephone or other electronic technology. 

● “Balance Date” means the end of the Party’s financial year determined by the Board. 
● “Board” means the Board of Government and Management of the Party and shall consist of 

no less than three and not more than 11 members, including the leader or co-leaders, and 
deputy or co-deputy leaders in accordance with Article 5.  

● “Board Member” means any person or persons elected to the Board in accordance with 
Article 5 and 7.  
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● “Body Corporate” Means all the members of the party, including the Board, forming one 
body.  

● “Candidate” means any Member selected as the Party’s representative to stand on behalf of 
the Party, whether in an electorate or on the Party List, in accordance with these Rules as a 
candidate for a seat in the New Zealand House of Representatives.  

● “Candidates Register” means a list compiled by the Board of all potential candidates 
together with such information about the prospective candidates the Board sees fit to 
include.  

● “Candidate Selection Committee” means a committee of members including the Party 
Leader and any co-leaders or deputy leader, constituted by the Board for the nomination 
and presentation of potential candidates to the membership for voting on at a General 
Meeting in accordance with Article 7.  

● “Caucus” means the Party Leader and the candidates.  
● “Committee” means one or more Members appointed by the Board to carry out any 

administrative function or functions concerning the affairs of the Party.  
● “Constitution” means this Constitution of the Party.  
● “Constitutional committee” means a committee convened by the Board to review 

amendments to the Constitution for approval at General Meetings of the Party.    
● “Convener” means a member approved by the Board and given access to contact details of 

members and supporters in their electorate or region, for the purpose of building a core 
working group to raise the party profile in their area.  

● “Deputy Leader” or “Co-Leader” means a person appointed in accordance with Article 5.  
● “Election” means a general election or a by-election as the case may require.  
● “Electoral Act” means the Electoral Act 1993 and any Act of the House of Representatives 

amending or replacing that Act.  
● “Electorate Candidate” means a Member chosen in accordance with this Constitution and 

Rules to stand as the Party’s candidate in an electorate either at a general election or a by-
election.  

● “Electorate Committee” means one or more Members responsible for the Party’s affairs in 
an electorate.  

● “Electorate Chair” means a Member appointed by the Regional President and/or the 
electorate candidate as the person responsible for building a working team in the electorate.  

● “Gender”: in this document words importing the plural include the singular and vice versa, 
and words importing the masculine include the feminine and vice versa. 

● “General Meeting” means either an Annual General Meeting or a Special General Meeting 
of the Members.  

● “Leader” means the leader of the Party appointed in accordance with Articles 5 and 7.  
● “List” or “Party List” means the List of Candidates compiled by the Party Caucus in 

accordance with Article 6 for the purposes of section 127 of the Electoral Act (or any 
replacement provision) as the Party’s list of candidates for election to the House of 
Representatives under the list seats provisions of the Mixed Member Proportional (MMP) 
system of representation.  

● “Member” or “Party Member” means any person who is a financial member of the Party in 
accordance with these Rules.  

● “Membership year” means the membership year of the Party which runs from 1 July to 30 
June for the purpose of levying subscriptions. 
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● “Member of Parliament” means a Member of the Party elected to the New Zealand 
Parliament and serving a current term of office. 

● “Notice” is any advice, document, or mail, required to be sent out to, or from a member or 
body of the party, as set out in the Constitution.  

● “Party” means New Zealand Loyal (NZL) of which this document is the Constitution and 
Rules for the purposes of the Electoral Act.  

● “Party Financial Records” refers to the official financial records maintained and returned by 
the Board Secretary with assistance from the Party Treasurer, for the purpose of recording 
subscriptions, donations, and expenses to the Party in accordance with the Electoral Act 206I 
and 207M. 

● “Parliamentary Wing” of the Party shall consist of the candidate members of the Party 
elected to the NZ House of Representatives. The Party Leader is the President of the 
Parliamentary Wing. Should at any time a member of the Parliamentary Wing cease to be a 
member of the Party, he or she shall also cease to be a member of the Parliamentary Wing. 

● “Policies” The Party policies which the candidates and Party Leader will take to the 
electorate and ultimately to the NZ House of Representatives. These are determined and 
maintained in accordance with Article 8. 

● “President” or “Vice President” means a member holding office for the time being in 
accordance with Article 5. The President is the Board Member responsible for, among other 
things, overseeing the governance and operations of the Party (excluding the Parliamentary 
Wing), and is responsible for chairing General Meetings and Conferences. 

● “Regional Committee” means a committee of Party Members constituted in accordance 
with Article 5 which is responsible for the affairs of the Party in a geographic region 
determined by the Board which may be the same as or different from the boundaries of 
electorates as set by the Electoral Commission.  

● “Regional President” is the chair/convener of the Regional Committee in accordance with 
Articles 5 and 7.  

● “Registered Office” is the address in NZ for the Party as determined by the Board from time 
to time and required by the Electoral Act.  

● “Rules” means the rules set out in this document as amended in accordance with its terms.  
● “Secretary” means any person appointed under Articles 5 and 7 to perform the duties of the 

Secretary of the Party or any person authorised to act in that person’s place.  
● “Special Conference” means a conference called by the Board for the purpose of considering 

a resolution to wind up the Party or for any other purpose the Board sees fit.  
● “Subscription” means the required levy or membership fee determined by the Board.  
● “Subject Matter Expert (SME)” is a person who is either a member or a non-member, who is 

brought in by the Board or the Caucus, to advise and assist the Board or the Caucus or to 
assist a committee appointed by the Board or the Caucus.  

● “Treasurer” or “Party Treasurer” means a Member appointed or elected under Article 7 
who shall perform such duties as the Board shall determine from time to time.  

Article 4: Membership 
1. Membership Eligibility: Any person who is entitled to be an “elector” as defined in the 

Electoral Act may become a member of the Party by completing all of the following:  
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a. Consenting to be a member by applying in writing or online on the NZL website to 
become a member. This includes signing a pledge to the Statement of NZL Party 
Principles. 

b. Paying such sum by way of Subscription as may be determined from time to time by 
the Board.  

c. Not being a member of another political party unless special permission is given by 
the Board. 

2. A person will cease to be member in accordance with one or more of the following:  

a. A member gives notice in writing to the Secretary of his or her resignation.  

b. The Board believes at its absolute discretion that a member has failed to comply 
with these rules or is guilty of conduct unbecoming of a member or prejudicial to the 
interests of the Party or has acted in contradiction to their pledge to the Statement 
of NZL Party Principles and the Board has provided notice to the member of its 
resolution to expel that member.  

c. A member dies; or  

d. The third anniversary of the last payment of their membership fee passes.  

3. A member who has resigned or been expelled from the Party will cease to hold himself/ 
herself out as a member of the Party and will return to the Party all material produced by 
the Party (including any membership certificate, handbooks, and manuals). 

4. Members must treat all information relating to commercial and political arrangements 
entered into by the Party as strictly confidential and must not disclose any information 
regarding those arrangements or any other confidential or sensitive information relating to 
the Party, to any third party without the prior written approval of the Board. 

5. Rights and Obligations: Members have full voting rights at AGMs and can be selected for 
party positions as per Article 7.   

6. MEMBER CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE  

a. The Board may suspend or cancel the membership of any Party Member who by 
words and/or conduct brings the Party or the Party Principles into disrepute or who 
violates their Statement of Party Principles or whose words and/or conduct 
otherwise prejudice the interests of the Party but shall not be obliged or required to 
give any more detailed reason for any such suspension or cancellation. 

b. Prior to suspending or cancelling a person's membership, the Board shall provide 
such person with a full and fair opportunity to be heard in respect of the alleged 
words and/or conduct and shall investigate any such allegations as fully as it 
considers to be appropriate in all the circumstances. The Board shall notify the 
affected person of the intended action with the reasons. However, in cases of 
extreme urgency, the Board may immediately suspend the affected person on an 
interim basis, until the investigation is decided. 



  New Zealand Loyal 
 

Page 8 
 

c. The affected person has five working days to respond to the notice of proposed 
action after notification. If there is no such response within that time, then the 
action will take effect.  

d. If the affected person responds, a meeting will be held within 15 working days. If the 
affected person does not attend, nor further cooperate with the meeting process, 
then the Board may decide with the current information before it.  

e. The Board may delegate its power to hear appeals to a person or body appointed for 
the purpose by the Board but may not delegate any disciplinary decision. The 
delegate must report back to the Board for the final decision to be made.  

f. The Board must determine any appeal based on the completed report, records, 
and/or evidence of the preceding investigation. The Board need not hear evidence 
on appeal unless the Board considers that doing so is necessary in the interests of 
fairness and then only to that extent. 

g. Unless the Board specifically determines otherwise, notice of suspension or 
cancellation of membership shall be given to the membership of the Party as soon 
as conveniently possible.  

h. The ruling of the Board regarding any appeal is final and binding on the parties and 
cannot be further appealed. 

7. Disputes between Members will be settled in accordance with Article 12. 

Article 5: Governance – Board Members (The Administrative Wing) 
The Board manages or supervises the affairs of NZL, and has all the powers necessary for managing, 
directing, and supervising the management of NZL. The Board does not determine NZL policy nor 
engage in any negotiations with possible coalition partners. These are the roles and responsibilities 
of the Caucus and the Parliamentary Wing. 

A person ceases to be a member of the Board in one of the following ways: 

1. They resign in writing to the Party Leader or Party Secretary,  
2. They are removed from office by a vote of 75% of the other Board members,  
3. Die, or  
4. Otherwise vacates the office in accordance with the Constitution.  

Members of the Board shall serve for a term of three years at which point they cease to be a 
member of the Board unless they are re-elected at an AGM or SGM prior to the expiry of that term.  

The quorum for Board meetings is at least 50% of Board members, including the Party Leader or a 
Deputy or Co-Leader. Decisions of the Board are made by majority vote, except as otherwise 
provided for in the Constitution.  

The following office holders are members of the Board of NZL: 

1. Party Leader: For the Purposes of the 2023 General Election, The NZL Party Leader shall be 
Liz Gunn. After the 2023 General Election, The Party Leader shall be re-appointed at the next 
AGM as per Article 7. The Party Leader is the Chairperson of the Board and is responsible for 
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the successful execution of the Principles and Objectives of NZL. The Party Leader has a 
casting vote in the event there is an equality of votes by members of the Board.  

2. Deputy Leaders or Co-leaders: For the Purposes of the 2023 General Election, Deputy 
Leaders or Co-leaders shall be appointed by the Party Leader. After the 2023 General 
election, they shall be appointed by the members at an AGM and can also be removed by 
such, as per Article 7. 

3. Party President: For the Purposes of the 2023 General Election, The NZL Party President 
shall be appointed by the Party Leader. After the 2023 General Election, The Party President 
shall be re-appointed at the AGM as per Article 7. The President is responsible for 
overseeing the governance and operations of the Party (excluding the Caucus and the 
Parliamentary Wing) and is responsible for chairing General Meetings and Conferences. 

4. Party Secretary: For the Purposes of the 2023 General Election, The NZL Party Secretary 
shall be appointed by the Party Leader. After the 2023 General Election, The Party Secretary 
shall be re-appointed at the AGM as per Article 7. 

(a) If a vacancy occurs in the position of Party Secretary, the remaining Board members of 
the party must ensure that, within 5 working days of the vacancy occurring, 

(b) A new Secretary is appointed; or  

(c) A person is appointed to act in the position of Secretary until a new Secretary can be 
appointed.  

(d) A person appointed under subsection (a) or (b) must immediately notify the Electoral 
Commission of that person’s appointment. 

(e) The Secretary is responsible for keeping the Register of Members, the Register of 
Interests, and recording the minutes of General Meetings and Board meetings. The 
Register of Members must contain: 

a. The name of each member. 

b. The last known contact details of each member. 

c. The date on which each person became a member. 

d. All other information prescribed by law.  

(f) (Electoral Act 1993 67AA). 

5. Party Treasurer: For the Purposes of the 2023 General Election, The NZL Party Treasurer 
shall be appointed by the Party Leader. After the 2023 General Election, The Party Treasurer 
shall be re-appointed at the AGM as per Article 7.  The Party Treasurer is responsible for 
keeping accurate and up to date accounts of Party donations and expenditures, particularly 
in reference to the Electoral Act 1993 financial reporting requirements. 

6. Regional Presidents: The Party Leader and Board members may elect or replace Regional 
Presidents from time to time to manage electorates. The Regional Presidents are responsible 
for the administration of the electorate campaigns within their areas and may convene 
Regional Committees. 
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Article 6:  Leadership – Candidates (The Caucus and the Parliamentary Wing) 
1. The Caucus of NZL is comprised of the Party Leader and candidates, before during and after 

a General Election.  
2. The Caucus led by the Party Leader, determines the policies of the Party and is responsible 

to the membership and supporters for protecting and promoting the objectives of the Party.  
3. The Parliamentary Wing consists of candidates and the Party Leader as elected to the NZ 

House of Representatives. The Parliamentary Wing, led by the Party Leader, is responsible 
for negotiations with potential coalition partners. The Parliamentary Wing will advance the 
policies, objectives, and philosophy of NZL within the NZ Parliamentary system.   

4. Selection of Candidates. For the 2023 General Election, the Party Leader and the Board have 
the sole discretion to nominate suitable candidates from among the membership for 
ratification by the members through a postal ballot. For subsequent General Elections (2026 
and onwards), candidates will be nominated by the Board-appointed Candidate Selection 
Committee for ratification by the members at the Annual General Meeting in the year 
before the General Election year, as per Article 7.  

5. Ordering of Candidates on the Party List. The ordering of the candidates on the Party List 
will take place in the year of the General Election, prior to Writ Day. The ordering of the 
Party List is the responsibility of the Party Leader and the Caucus. Ordering of the Party List 
shall take place by ballot as follows.  

a. The Party Leader is automatically at first place on the list. 
b. Co-leaders are automatically at the next places on the list as negotiated with the 

Party Leader. 
c. Remaining places on the Party List are for the candidates by ballot as follows:  

i. Each candidate shall have one vote for one other candidate of their choice 
but may not vote for themselves. 

ii. The Party Leader shall have five votes.  
iii. Votes will be cast and counted by scrutineers chosen by the members at the 

previous AGM or by members of the Board for the 2023 General Election.  
iv. Candidates will be ordered according to the number of votes cast. For tied 

positions, another round of voting will take place as before but just for the 
tied candidates.   

Article 7: Annual General Meetings (AGMs), Special General Meetings, Election of 
Officers 

1. Annual General Meetings. The Party must convene an AGM of its members at least once 
each calendar year. The Board must set the date of the meeting. The notice convening the 
AGM must state that the meeting is the Annual General Meeting. The ordinary business of 
the AGM is, without limitation:  

a. To confirm the minutes of the last AGM and any general meeting held since that 
meeting.  

b. To receive from the Board, reports on the activities of the Party since the last AGM. 
c. To read the names of those elected to the Board.  
d. To present the financial report.  
e. To debate and vote upon remits approved by the Board; and  
f. The meeting may also transact any special business determined by the Board of 

which notice is given in accordance with these rules.  
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g. The election or re-election of Officers of the Party. 
h. The selection of candidates in the year prior to a General Election. 

2. Special General Meetings (SGMs). Any general meeting of the Party except the Annual 
General Meeting is a Special General Meeting. The Board may convene a SGM whenever it 
thinks fit. Party members may also call a SGM by a petition to the Board of not less than 50 
members. The petition will include agenda items for the SGM. References in these rules to 
General Meetings includes SGMs.  

3. Notice of General Meetings.  At least 14 days before the date fixed for a General Meeting of 
the Party, the Secretary must send each member of the Party a notice specifying the place, 
date and time of the meeting and the nature of the business to be transacted at it.  

4. Limitation on business to be transacted. No business may be transacted at a General 
Meeting of the Party except the business specified in the notice of meeting. A member who 
wants an item of business to be transacted at a General Meeting may give notice of the 
business in writing to the Secretary. The Secretary may include the business in the next 
notice of a General Meeting at the discretion of the Board.  

5. Quorum. An item of business may not be transacted at a General Meeting unless a quorum 
of members entitled to vote is present while the item is being transacted. The quorum has at 
least 50 members.  

6. Attendance. Members shall be considered to be present at the Annual General Meeting if 
they are physically present. At Special General Meetings, members may be physically 
present or they can attend the meeting and contribute to proceedings by way of conference 
call or similar electronic medium. 

7. Chairperson at meetings. The Board President must preside as chairperson at each General 
Meeting of the Party. If the Board Chair is absent, one of the other Board members present 
chosen by the Board will preside as chairperson at the meeting.  

8. Meetings Rules: General meetings shall be conducted in accordance with Robert’s Rules of 
Order. Minutes will be taken by the Board Secretary or delegate at all AGM and SGMs.  

9. One member, one vote. A member has one vote on any question that is to be decided at a 
General Meeting. A vote must be given personally. If votes on a question are tied, the 
chairperson of the meeting is entitled to exercise a second or casting vote.  

10. A written resolution in lieu of vote is valid if approved by at least 75% of members who are 
entitled to vote at an AGM. 

11. Voting by show of hands. A question that is to be decided at a General Meeting of the Party 
is to be decided on a show of hands. Unless a poll is demanded, a declaration by the 
chairperson that a resolution has been carried, carried unanimously, carried by a particular 
majority, or lost, plus an entry to that effect in the minute book of the Party, is evidence of 
that fact, without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded for and against 
that resolution.  

12. Demanding a poll. If at least five members entitled to vote at a General Meeting demand a 
poll on a question that is to be decided at the meeting, the chairperson must comply with 
that demand. The demand may be made before a show of hands or immediately after the 
chairperson’s declaration on a show of hands. In the latter case, the poll overrides the show 
of hands. A poll that is demanded on a question of an adjournment must be taken 
immediately. Any other poll must be taken before the close of the meeting. 

13. Election of Officers. The appointment of Officers of the Party is as follows:  
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a. The positions of Party Leader, Deputy Leaders, Co-leaders, President, and other 
Board members shall be decided by the members of the Party by majority vote at an 
AGM or Special General Meeting.  

b. Regional Presidents shall be appointed by the Board. 
c. Electorate Chairs shall be appointed by the Regional Presidents and the associated 

electorate candidates. 
14. Election of Candidates. In the year prior to a General Election, apart from 2023 (Article 6.4) 

a. Candidates for electoral positions shall be nominated by a member of the Candidate 
Selection Committee and seconded by another such member. 

b. At the AGM, members shall vote for the candidates on ballot papers provided by the 
Candidate Selection Committee to the AGM. 

c. The Board shall then appoint two scrutineers to count the votes.  
d. Each member present and desiring to vote shall by secret ballot cast a maximum of 1 

vote for each available position, and the candidate(s) securing the most votes shall 
be deemed to be appointed.  

e. In the event that there is more than one candidate for a position and voting is tied 
then, in the case of the Party Leader, the Party President shall cast a vote on. In any 
other case the Party Leader shall have the casting vote. 

Article 8: Policy Formation and Decision-Making 
1. Policy Team: The Party Leader will appoint the Policy Team from among the candidates. 

Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) will be appointed from within the Policy team by the Party 
Leader. The SMEs will develop policies within their chosen field. They may consult with SMEs 
from outside the Party.  Candidates will also report feedback from supporters to the Policy 
Team. The Party Leader will review, amend, and finally approve all policies before 
publishing.    

2. Decision-Making: Administrative decisions are the responsibility and authority of the Board. 
Policy decisions are the responsibility and authority of the Caucus.  

Article 9: Elections and Campaigns 
1. Candidates are selected for elections in accordance with Articles 6 and 7. 

2. The candidates are responsible for establishing and promoting policies within their 
electorates that are consistent with the Objectives, Principles and Core Philosophies of NZL.  

3. Campaign Guidelines shall be promulgated to candidates from the Board via a Candidates 
Handbook. 

4. The Board may appoint Regional Presidents to administer multiple electoral regions. The 
Regional Presidents may appoint Electorate Committees which will include the candidates. 

5. Candidates are responsible to the Board for complying with the Electoral Act rules during 
their campaigns as directed via the Candidates Handbook. 

6. Candidates shall fund their own campaigns and report all donations and expenditure to the 
Board in accordance with the Electoral Act. 

Article 10: Finances  
Annual financial statements 
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1. Every year a set of annual financial statements will be prepared by or at the instigation of 
the Board showing all the receipts and expenditure of the Party since the preceding annual 
financial statements and will include a general statement of the funds, effects, liabilities, 
assets and all mortgages, charges and securities of any description affecting any property of 
the Party.  

2. Expenditure of NZL funds must be approved by two individuals authorised by the Board. 
Approval may be in writing or through an appropriate internet banking process.  

3. Auditor. The Board will appoint a suitably qualified person who meets the criteria under the 
Electoral Act 1993, as the Party’s auditor to audit the Party’s accounts and returns to the 
extent required by the Act.  

4. Financial year. The financial year of the Party will be from 1 January to 31 December or as 
may otherwise be determined by the Board. 

Indemnity  

5. Every current Board member and Officer of the Party shall be indemnified out of the assets 
of the Party against any liability for any act or omission in their capacity as an Officer or 
Member or costs incurred by the Officer of the Party or Board member in defending or 
settling any claim or proceeding relating to that liability.  

Article 11: Amendments to this Constitution 
Amendment of the Constitution and Rules  

1. This Constitution may be amended at an AGM or Special General Meeting called under 
Article 7 for the purpose of amending the Constitution and these Rules.  

2. Notice of any meeting called for the purpose of amending this Constitution and these Rules 
shall be given by the Secretary to all members not less than fourteen days prior to the date 
of the meeting. Any such notice shall be accompanied by the proposed amendment(s) in 
written form.  

3. The Board may convene a Constitution Amendments meeting to propose amendments to 
this Constitution for ratification by the members present at the associated AGM or SGM.  

4. Members of the Board shall be considered to be present at the Constitution Amendments 
meeting if they are physically present or they and all others attending the meeting can hear 
and contribute to proceedings by way of conference call or similar electronic medium.  

5. Any proposed amendment shall be voted on by all members present at the AGM or SGM, 
and no amendment shall be made to this Constitution unless 75% of the members present 
at the meeting vote in favour of such amendment(s).  

6. During the course of the AGM or SGM, any member of the Board may propose a further or 
alternative amendment which shall be put to the meeting for a vote thereon if not less than 
25% of the members present vote in favour of that course of action. The amendment must 
not be of such a nature as to be a completely different amendment, nor concern one or 
more different clauses of the Constitution than what was communicated.  

7. Where any amendment(s) to the Constitution is or are made, the Board shall notify all Party 
Members of such change(s) forthwith. 

8. The Constitution may also be amended via a member’s remit passed by a 75% majority at 
the AGM. Each remit must relate to a single paragraph of a rule, unless the Board approves 
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the remit to have wider effect within that rule, as well as any consequent amendments that 
will be required in other rules.  

Article 12: Dispute Resolution 
1. Any dispute between Members of the Party (other than concerning decisions of the Board) 

shall be settled in the first instance by negotiation between the parties with the assistance 
of the Board.  

2. If the dispute is not settled, a complaint may be made to any member of the Board in writing 
and signed by the complainant.  

3. The Board may appoint a Disputes Committee to act on its behalf in this process and it is the 
responsibility of the Committee (or the Board if there is no committee) to ensure they have 
heard all sides of the dispute and are fully informed before negotiating a settlement.  

4. If a disciplinary decision of the Board is disputed, then Article 4.6 (c) to (f) procedures will 
apply.  

Article 13: Dissolution 
1. The Members may decide, by a resolution passed with the affirmative vote of at least 80% 

of the votes cast by Members voting at a Special Conference convened for that purpose 
resolve that the Party shall be wound up.  

2. A notice of any resolution passed under shall be sent to the Electoral Commission.  

3. Surplus assets after payment of liabilities upon the winding up of the Party shall be disposed 
of by the Board for the benefit of any organisation or organisations whose objects are the 
same or similar to that of the Party or otherwise at the absolute discretion of the Board in 
accordance with the Incorporated Societies Act (notwithstanding NZL is not an incorporated 
society). 

4. Notwithstanding anything in this rule, such of the said surplus assets referred to herein 
which are subject to any trust, shall be disposed of in accordance with a ruling of the High 
Court. 

5. Merging into a coalition with another party. The members of NZL may at a General Meeting 
or Special Meeting, elect to merge NZL with another party by following the steps 1 through 4 
for a Dissolution. In this case, surplus assets will be donated to the new party.  

 



Electoral Commission Cyber Security Warning: This email originated from outside of the
Commission. Please take extra care when clicking links or opening attachments. When in
doubt, contact the IT Service Desk.

From: Dean 
To: Michele 
Subject: RE: FW: NZICA - Member Confirmation (Electoral Commission)
Date: Tuesday, 1 August 2023 9:03:00 am
Attachments: image001.png

Kia ora Michelle,
As noted in the Handbook:
Parties and prospective auditors are referred to the relevant provisions of the Electoral Act 1993,
the Financial Reporting Act 2013 and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand Act
1996 (and the Institute Rules), which set out the requirement of who may be an auditor and what
they must do in auditing and reporting on the annual returns of party donations and loans and
returns of party expenses.
We rely on the NZICA’s advice as to who is a qualified auditor, so we recommend you or 

 contact them to clarify.
In the meantime, please let us know if there is anything we can help with regarding your
application.
Nga mihi
Dean

From: Michele  
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 4:10 PM
To: Dean  
Subject: Re: FW: NZICA - Member Confirmation (Electoral Commission)

Kia ora Dean, can you please clarify because it seems that we have met the
requirements as stated in your own Party Registration Handbook where it
says:
- p.20 The auditor must be a chartered accountant who holds a Certificate of
Public Practice; and
- p.21 The Commission will check with Chartered Accountants Australia and
New Zealand to confirm that the auditor is a chartered accountant who holds
a Certificate of Public Practice.
Nga mihi,
Michele Smith

On Mon, 31 Jul 2023 at 09:16, Dean  < @elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michelle
We contacted the NZICA as it wasn’t apparent from their website that  was a
qualified auditor which is a requirement for registration. The NZICA have come back advising
she is not a qualified auditor.
Can you ask  to liaise with the association and clarify.
Nga mihi
Dean
Dean  | Senior Advisor Legal | Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri
PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34-42 Manners Street | Wellington
Phone +  |
From:   < @charteredaccountantsanz.com> 





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
Subject: Qualified Auditor Consent Letter for NZ Loyal party
Date: Friday, 4 August 2023 3:22:59 pm
Attachments: AUDITOR Consent Letter - Andrew Ford, MFA Limited.pdf

Dear Dean, please find attached the consent letter from our qualified
auditors, MFA Limited, to be appended to our Party Registration Form. 
I trust this will meet the requirements but please let me know if there is
anything else I can help with.

Kind regards,
Michele Smith



 

MFA Audit 

 
T 09 379 7340 

admin@mfal.co.nz 
www.mfal.co.nz  

Level 17 
120 Albert Street 
Auckland 1010 
PO Box 3529  

Auckland 1140 

4 August 2023 
 
 
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
we have been approached by Michelle Smith (party secretary) of the New Zealand Loyal Party to be 
the auditor. 
 
I can confirm we have accepted this appointment as auditor of the New Zealand Loyal Party. 
 
 
Sincerely 
 

 
 
Andrew Ford  
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
To: Benjamin 
Subject: Re: Information needed - Party financial statements
Date: Tuesday, 13 February 2024 3:05:56 pm
Attachments: Picture (Device Independent Bitmap) 1.jpg

image1707789872731

Hi Benjamin, I confirm we are under provision B and our financial year ends 31 December.

Thanks,
Michele

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
 |  

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may
contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message and notify the sender. You

should not read, copy, use, change, alter, or disclose this email or its attachments without authorisation.  New Zealand Loyal

and any related or associated companies do not accept any liability in connection with this email and any attachments

including in connection with computer viruses, data corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access, or unauthorised

amendment. Any views expressed in this email and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of NZ Loyal or the

views of any of our related or associated companies. 

On Wednesday, November 8th, 2023 at 10:59 AM, Benjamin  < @elections.govt.nz>
wrote:

Kia ora Michele
 
New requirements for political parties to provide financial statements to the Electoral Commission were
passed into law in the Electoral Amendment Act 2022.
 
These will first have to be filed with the Commission in 2024, covering financial years from 1 January
2023 onwards. We are now getting in touch with recently registered parties to signal this requirement
and to confirm the category each party falls into for the purposes of the new requirements.
 
The way the rules apply depends on whether the party is an incorporated society, and what its own
constitution or rules require. This is separate to the election expense and donation returns that parties
also must file. 
 
We have read the version of the party’s constitution or rules filed with the Commission. It is for the party
secretary to advise us, but to assist I have set out the provisions in the Act and how we propose to
categorise your party below (based on what is apparent in your party rules or constitution).
 
Please confirm or correct this, as necessary, by emailing me back as soon as possible. 
 

Provision Application to party 

A)  If the party is an incorporated society, when is the annual
financial statement provided to the Registrar of Incorporated
Societies? A copy should be provided to the Electoral
Commission at the same time, and no later than 6 months from
the balance date.  
 

N/A
 

NZ Loyal appears to be
unincorporated, with party rules



B)  If the party is not an incorporated society, but has a date
under the party constitution by which statements must be
prepared, what is that date? A copy should be provided to the
Electoral Commission within 6 months of the balance date. 
 

requiring financial statements.
Financial year ends 31 December, so
statements must be filed with EC by
30 June.
Please confirm.
 

Where neither A or B above applies the default deadline for
providing the annual financial statement to the Electoral
Commission is 30 September each year.  Parties in this category
must apply generally accepted accounting practice (GAAP) and
include the details specified in s 210G(3) of the Electoral Act
1993.  
 

N/A

Does the party constitution or any enactment require an
auditor’s report on the annual financial statement? If so, this
must be provided at the same time as the statements are
provided to the Commission.  
 

No.  

 
The party’s deadline for annual financial statements and whether an audit report on the annual financial
statement is required will be added to the register of political parties which is published
on www.elections.nz. We aim to publish this as soon as possible. 
 
We look forward to hearing from you.  
 
Ngā mihi
 
Benjamin  (he/him)| Senior Policy Advisor | Legal and Policy 
Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri  
PO Box 3220 | Level 4, 34-42 Manners Street | Wellington
Work  | vote.nz | elections.nz
 

 
 
 



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
Subject: RE: Sample voting paper for review
Date: Wednesday, 9 August 2023 10:08:00 am

Kia ora Michelle,
You are free to campaign and use the logo and name at any time – the registration of the name
and the logo only relates to what appears on the voting paper.
Nga mihi
Dean
Dean  | Senior Advisor Legal | Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri
PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34-42 Manners Street | Wellington
Phone +  |
From: Michele  
Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 9:55 AM
To: Dean  
Subject: Re: Sample voting paper for review

Morning Dean, thanks, I will get back to you asap regarding the sample
ballot paper and a better resolution image of our logo. In the meantime, can
you please confirm that we can go ahead with putting up election signage
from this Saturday, 12 August, while we are still in this stage of the
registration process?
Kind regards,
Michele
On Wed, 9 Aug 2023 at 08:51, Dean  < @elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora Michelle,
As discussed on the telephone, I have attached the sample voting paper for your review. Our
IT team have asked for a high res jpeg which will make the image sharper. The file they need
is:

High resolution .jpg (5cm wide, 350dpi, RGB)

Please delete the pdf after viewing.
Public consultation will likely run from Saturday 12 August to Friday 25 August with a Board
decision soon after that.
Nga mihi
Dean
Dean  | Senior Advisor Legal | Electoral Commission | Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri
PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34-42 Manners Street | Wellington
Phone +  |



EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING: Do not open any attachments or links until you
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From: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz
To: L & P Enquiries
Subject: S71 Requirements
Date: Tuesday, 30 April 2024 5:03:39 pm
Attachments: image1714453178328

NZLoyal Party RENEWAL of Membership Form 2023 TEMPLATE.pdf
s71A stat dec SIGNED.jpeg

Hi, attached is the declaration and the renewal form.  The answers to your questions are
below.

How many current financial members who are eligible to enrol as electors does the party have as

at 1 April 2024? 

We are only willing to provide this information to the Commission on the provision it is kept

confidential, and that this information will not be made public nor will it be released in

response to a request under the Official Information Act 1982 unless the Commission is

required to do so.

There are currently  financial members.

 

Under the party’s rules, how often is a membership fee payable?

Annually. 

How and where within the party are membership applications, renewals and associated fees

processed and recorded? Please provide details of the processes followed and a sample

membership/renewal form.

These are recorded on a spreadsheet, with a filter to allow us to know when renewals are

coming up, or due.  These are checked regularly. 

As party secretary, how often do you receive or obtain updated information on the number of

current financial members the party has?

Annually, or when requested. 

How are members aged under 18 years excluded from the count?

Via the birth dates that members supply us with. 

What other steps does the party take to ensure that members included in the count are, and

remain, eligible to enrol as an elector, including members who are outside New Zealand?

We haven’t had to go through this process yet, but will be notifying members as their due dates

come up via one or more of the following options - email, letter by post, newsletter. 

How is the count made that reliably includes only those members fitting the definition of

“current financial member eligible to enrol as an elector”?

We have a tick box on our membership form for people to tell us if they are eligible to enrol or



are enrolled. 

How does the party ensure that the same individual is not counted twice as a member through,

for instance, membership of two branches?

We have one central spreadsheet for all members.  Each new member is searched for as they

are added to the spreadsheet. 

What management or audit systems exist to ensure that any regionally/electorate-based

membership systems/counts are reliably maintained?

We do not have any regional/electorate-based membership systems/counts. 

How is the termination of membership (including expiry of membership, resignations or deaths

of members) processed, by whom, and how quickly after terminating event?

Expiry – we notify members.

Resignations or deaths – we will process them as soon as possible after we receive news from

the member. Processed by either the party secretary or one of the admin. staff. 

Kind regards,
Michele

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
 |  

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may
contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message and

notify the sender. You should not read, copy, use, change, alter, or disclose this email or its attachments

without authorisation.  New Zealand Loyal and any related or associated companies do not accept any

liability in connection with this email and any attachments including in connection with computer

viruses, data corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access, or unauthorised amendment. Any

views expressed in this email and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of NZ Loyal or

the views of any of our related or associated companies. 
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safe. Beware of phishing attacks, check the sender address. Always report emails you are not certain
are safe.

From: EC Legal
To: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz
Cc: Dan Gunn; Liz Gunn
Subject: RE: FW: Cancellation of New Zealand Loyal"s registration
Date: Monday, 29 July 2024 1:10:00 pm
Attachments: image001.png

image002.jpg

Kia ora Michele
 
The Gazette notice was published at 9:12am this morning. You can find it under Cancellation of Registration of
Party and Logo on the Gazette website.
 
Ngā mihi
Braedyn
 
Braedyn  (he/him) | Advisor Legal
Electoral Commission – Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri
PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34-42 Manners Street, Wellington

 | vote.nz | elections.nz  
 

 
 
 

From: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz <michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz> 
Sent: Monday, July 29, 2024 11:48 AM
To: EC Legal <legal@Elections.govt.nz>
Cc: Dan Gunn < >; 
Subject: Re: FW: Cancellation of New Zealand Loyal's registration

 

 
Thank you for your email confirming that the registration of New Zealand Loyal has been cancelled.  Can you
please advise when this will be published in the Gazette?
 
Thanks,
Michele
 
Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal

 |  
 

 



This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may
contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message and notify the sender.
You should not read, copy, use, change, alter, or disclose this email or its attachments without authorisation.  New
Zealand Loyal and any related or associated companies do not accept any liability in connection with this email and any
attachments including in connection with computer viruses, data corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access, or
unauthorised amendment. Any views expressed in this email and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of
NZ Loyal or the views of any of our related or associated companies. 

 
On Monday, July 29th, 2024 at 8:53 AM, EC Legal < @Elections.govt.nz> wrote:

Mōrena Michele
 
Please find attached a letter on behalf of the Electoral Commission, confirming that the registration
of New Zealand Loyal has been cancelled.
 
Ngā mihi
Braedyn
 
Braedyn  (he/him) | Advisor Legal
Electoral Commission – Te Kaitiaki Take Kōwhiri
PO Box 3220 | Level 10, 34-42 Manners Street, Wellington

 | vote.nz | elections.nz  
 

 
 
 
 

From: EC Legal 
Sent: Thursday, July 25, 2024 3:54 PM
To: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz
Cc: Dan Gunn < >; 
Subject: RE: Cancellation of New Zealand Loyal's registration

 
Kia ora Michele
 
The last couple of cancellations were approved within a few days, but it will depend on the
availability of the Chief Electoral Officer. I expect to give you an update early next week.
 
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
certain they are safe. Beware of phishing attacks, check the sender address. Always
report emails you are not certain are safe.

 

From: michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz <michele.smith@nzloyal.org.nz> 
Sent: Thursday, July 25, 2024 11:59 AM
To: EC Legal <legal@Elections.govt.nz>
Cc: ; 
Subject: Re: Cancellation of New Zealand Loyal's registration

 

 
Thank you for advising the process going forward. How long does the approval process take?

Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal
 |  

 

 

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may contain
privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the message and notify the
sender. You should not read, copy, use, change, alter, or disclose this email or its attachments without
authorisation.  New Zealand Loyal and any related or associated companies do not accept any liability in
connection with this email and any attachments including in connection with computer viruses, data
corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access, or unauthorised amendment. Any views expressed in
this email and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of NZ Loyal or the views of any of our
related or associated companies. 

Sent from Proton Mail mobile

-------- Original Message --------
On 25 Jul 2024, 10:05 am, EC Legal < @Elections.govt.nz> wrote:

 
Kia ora Michele
 



EXTERNAL EMAIL WARNING: Do not open any attachments or links until
you are certain they are safe. Beware of phishing attacks, check the sender
address. Always report emails you are not certain are safe.

Thank you for notifying us. We will start the deregistration process today and advise
you when it has been completed.
 
The process from here is that the Chief Electoral Officer will approve the notice to
cancel registration. Once approved, your information will be removed from the
Register, and a Gazette notice made notifying that the party’s registration has been
cancelled.
 
Let me know if you have any queries.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, July 24, 2024 4:57 PM
To: EC Legal <legal@Elections.govt.nz>
Cc: Dan Gunn < >; Liz Gunn < >
Subject: Cancellation of New Zealand Loyal's registration

 

 
Good afternoon.  As party secretary, I write to request that the Electoral Commission
cancel New Zealand Loyal's registration as a political party - see details below.
 
Political Name: New Zealand Loyal
Reason: New Zealand Loyal no longer exists as a political party.
 
Kind regards,
Michele
 
Michele Smith | Party Secretary | New Zealand Loyal

 |  
 



 

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may
contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the
message and notify the sender. You should not read, copy, use, change, alter, or disclose this
email or its attachments without authorisation.  New Zealand Loyal and any related or
associated companies do not accept any liability in connection with this email and any
attachments including in connection with computer viruses, data corruption, delay,
interruption, unauthorised access, or unauthorised amendment. Any views expressed in this
email and any attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of NZ Loyal or the views of
any of our related or associated companies. 
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